
 

 

 
AGENDA  

FOR THE 72nd ANNUAL MEETING 
CAMBRIDGE MEMORIAL HOSPITAL CORPORATION 

June 30, 2021 
* attached 
1. Call to Order 
2. Land Acknowledgment 
3. Confirmation of Quorum (6 or more)  
4. Review of Minutes of Previous Meeting – June 24, 2020*  

Proposed MOTION: that, the minutes of June 24, 2020 be approved  

David Pyper 
David Pyper 
David Pyper 
David Pyper 

5. Business Arising from the Previous Meeting (none noted) David Pyper 

6. Report of the Chair* David Pyper 

7. Report of the CEO  Patrick Gaskin 

8. Report of the COS  Dr. Asim Masood 

9. Report of the Auditor  
Audited Statements* 
Proposed MOTION: that, the audited financial statements for the year 
ended March 31, 2021, as approved by the Board of Directors on May 26, 
2021, be approved. 
Audit Finding Report* 
Proposed MOTION:  that, the audit finding report, presented to the Board 
of Directors on May 26, 2021, be received. 

Denise Smith 
 
 

10. Appointment of the Auditor 
Proposed MOTION:  that, the firm KPMG LLP, Licensed Public 
Accountants be reappointed as the auditors for Cambridge Memorial 
Hospital for the fiscal year 2021/22 at a fee to be established by the Board 
of Directors.  

Denise Smith 

11. Election of the Directors*  
Proposed MOTION:  that, the Corporation elect as Directors of the 
Corporation the following individuals, with terms as listed: 
Nicola Melchers – for a three (3) year term 
Denise Smith – for a one (1) year term 
Jody Stecho - for a three (3) year term 
David Pyper – for a two (2) year term 
Diane Wilkinson – for a two (2) year term 
Julia Goyal - for a two (2) year term 
Margaret McKinnon -  for a three (3) year term 

Nicola Melchers 

12. Acknowledgment of Retiring Directors 
Katie Hamilton 
Ian Miles 

David Pyper 

13. Adjournment 
Proposed MOTION: that, there being no further business, the Annual 
Meeting be adjourned 

David Pyper 

 
 

Corporation Members: Ian Miles, Tom Dean, David Pyper, Denise Smith, Elaine Habicher, Nicola Melchers, Tim Edworthy, Tom Dean, 
Katie Hamilton, Diane Wilkinson, Sara Alvarado, Lynn Woeller. 



CAMBRIDGE MEMORIAL HOSPITAL 
Members of the Corporation  

Annual Meeting 

Minutes of the Annual Meeting of the Members held in the Boardroom on June 24, 2020 at 1936 hours. 

Present: 
Mr. I. Miles (Chair) Mr. J. Stecho 
Ms. N. Melchers Mr. T. Edworthy 
Mr. T. Dean Mr. B. Deley 
Ms. D. Smith  Ms. E. Habicher 
Mr. D. Pyper Ms. K. Hamilton 
Ms. S. Alvarado 

Regrets:, Ms. L. Woeller 
Guests:   Mr. P. Gaskin, Mr. S. Beckhoff, Mr. M. Prociw, Dr. H. MacLeod, Ms. S. Hett 
Recorder:  Ms. C. Vandervalk 

1. CALL TO ORDER
Mr. Miles called the meeting to order at 1936 hours.  The Chair explained that the formal business of 
the annual meeting would be covered at this meeting.  

2. Confirmation of Quorum
Quorum was confirmed. 

3. Review of  Minutes of Previous Meeting – June 26, 2019
 The Members of Cambridge Memorial Hospital Corporation reviewed the minutes of June 26, 2019. 

4. Business Arising from the Previous Meeting – none noted

5. Report of the CEO
 No report 

6. Report of the Auditor
 Audited Statements* 
MOTION: (Smith/Deley) that, the audited financial statements for the year ending March 31, 2020, 
approved by the Board of Directors on June 15,2020 be approved. CARRIED 
Audit Finding Report* 
MOTION: (Smith/Deley) that, the audit finding report, presented to the Board of Directors on June 
15, 2020, be received. CARRIED 

7. Chief of Staff Report
No report 

8. Election of Directors
MOTION:(Deley/Smith) that, the Corporation elect as Directors of the Corporation the following 
individuals, with terms as listed: 

Katie Hamilton – for a three (3) year term 
Elaine Habicher– for a three (3) year term 
Sara Alvarado - for a three (3) year term 
Bill Deley– for a three (3) year term  

  CARRIED 

, Dr. W. Lee
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9.  Appointment of the Auditor 
  Ms. Smith put forward a motion to reappoint the KPMG Auditors for 2020/21 

 
MOTION:  (Smith/Melchers) that, the firm KPMG LLP, Chartered 

Professional Accountants be reappointed as the auditors for 
Cambridge Memorial Hospital for the fiscal year 2020/21 at a fee 
to be established by the Board of Directors. CARRIED 

 
10.  Adjournment 

There being no further business, the annual meeting adjourned at 1939 hours. (Miles/Deley) 
CARRIED 

 
 
 
Ian Miles Patrick Gaskin 
Chair of the Board Secretary 
Member CMH Corporation CMH Board of Directors  
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Date:   June 30, 2021  
     
Issue:  Board Chair Year End Report  
 
Prepared for: David Pyper   
 
Purpose:      ☐  Approval ☐  Discussion   ☒  Information   
  
Prepared by: David Pyper 
 
 
 
Summary Of Past Year 
 
 As the new chair of the Board starting in July 2020, CMH and the rest of Canada had 
just come through a significantly serious first wave of Covid 19 pandemic. As a Board we had 
already gone to the digital meeting table and routines and pressures had been challenging to 
contain the virus and provide all staff with enough appropriate PPE when little was available. By 
July daily provincial new cases had dropped from 650 in May to less than 50. Things seemed to 
have subsided to the point where summer seemed to be almost normal, surgeries were 
resuming, PPE pressures had subsided, and staff had time to catch our breath and take a 
holiday. We could not have predicted that the fall, winter and spring would create an 
environment that would challenge CMH and Ontario Healthcare in a way it has never been 
challenged before with daily provincial cases in Ontario over 4000 a day and rising by March. 
 
 Our year from July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021 has been a journey like no other. And, while 
the Board, staff and medical leaders continued worked to manage the CRP project, build a new 
kitchen, power up a new generation system, assess a new HIS system, continue surgery when 
permitted and care for the never ending patients’ needs that arrived at Emergency every day, 
everyone had to pivot, change their routines, change their jobs, manage overloaded wards, care 
for patients in isolation wards, assist patients who lost surgery dates, help families unable to see 
and care for loved ones, rescue and support community long term care homes overwhelmed 
and care for overworked and exhausted staff who worked tirelessly to support patients in all 
areas. It was a serious and pressurized environment which has not been seen before. And yet, 
this was handled as a solid and cohesive staff who at all levels and in all areas went above and 
beyond the call of regular duty to ensure that the outcome after two massive waves would see 
CMH leading and performing medical services at a high level of excellence. This took strong 
leadership, outstanding communication, cohesive team work, total commitment, extreme 
flexibility and comprehensive compassion. As Board Chair, I could only marvel, applaud and 
cheer on those leading the Covid response and those on the front lines keeping patients alive 
and safe. Thanks, on behalf of the Board and a grateful community, will never be enough but it 
is a place to start at the very least.  
 
 Through this extraordinary time and unparalleled event there are amazing highlights, 
events, celebrations and learnings that have taken place at Cambridge Memorial Hospital. Dr. 

 

BRIEFING NOTE  
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Winnie Lee continued her leadership as interim COS until September. Dr. Asim Masood and 
Trevor Clark were welcomed to the senior management team while Mike Prociw took over the 
CRP project. CNE Sandra Hett gave notice in May of her pending retirement. CMH took the 
initiative to establish a Covid Assessment Centre for Cambridge, first on-site and later at an 
external location. CMH provided critical external support Cambridge Country Manor Long Term 
Care (LTC) and took in Covid patients from Forest Heights LTC and later provided critical relief 
for Covid patients from GTA hospitals. Continuously CMH worked in close cooperation with 
Grand River Hospital, St. Mary’s General Hospital and the Cambridge North Dumfries Ontario 
Health Team (CND OHT) to ensure coordination of care and the maximum efficiency of supplies 
and services. CMH initiated partnership in the early going with local companies providing PPE. 
 
 Within the hospital day to day operations and beyond the boundaries of Covid 19, a new 
department Chief council was established. In response to growing concerns for staff wellness, 
programs were enhanced and reinforced making it a primary focus for the organization. As 
concerns for racial equity and opportunities grew throughout the year the organization 
responded with a hospital-wide survey and the establishment of a Diversity Equity and Inclusion 
council that will guide the organization’s work on this over the coming years. Senior 
administration responded to staff with Town Hall meetings designed to provide a forum for 
questions, concerns and ideas to be shared directly with interested staff. A significant start was 
also made on the investigation towards a recommendation on a new HIS program, but in the 
end, this fell victim to the time and attention required to combat the continuing Covid 19 
pandemic. In addition, all through the year, staff at all levels and in all departments maintained a 
patient first focus which helped to drive the organization to its successful outcome. There are so 
many at CMH to whom we owe our thanks. 
 
Kudos and Thanks to: 
 

• Front line staff who sacrificed time, family and health to maintain excellent care  
• Plant maintenance staff for continuing the challenging work of expanding CMH and 

keeping it afloat 
• Cleaning staff for ensuring a safe and secure environment for patients and staff 
• CMH Doctors for altering your programs and caseloads and pivot to support the fight 
• Administration staff who kept the lights on, communications flowing, payroll paying and 

ensuring programs and change are supported and maintained 
• Senior staff for their strong and effective leadership during the year, for seeking to 

achieve their goals, for adjusting and making things work, for personal support to staff 
and for the constant and effective support for the Board. 

• Board members, for your work as committee chairs and committee members, for your 
support of staff throughout the year, for the high level of dialogue, discussion and 
learning at the Board table, and for your support of the Board Chair and Vice Chair 
throughout the year. 

• Special thanks to Katie Hamilton for her time on the Board as a strong contributing 
member and your special insights 

• Special thanks to Ian Miles for his time on the Board as a member and chair of many 
Board committees and his two years as Board Chair leading us through Wave 1 of the 
Covid 19 pandemic. 

• Kudos to the Cambridge Memorial Hospital Foundation for their unwavering and 
continuing campaigns to fund CMH equipment throughout the Covid 19 pandemic. 

 
The Road Ahead: 
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 As first vaccinations in Ontario top 70% and fully the fully vaccinated in Ontario over 
20% there is hope that a return to an altered ‘normal’ reality is nearby. For CMH there are 
several themes and directions that will be front and centre for both Board and Staff starting now. 
 

• Finalization of the HIS recommendation to the Board, the Board decision, financing, 
implementation and staff training. 

• The challenges of the final phase of the CRP project and the impact that will have on 
space, resources, staff, patients and patient care. 

• Diversity, Equity and Inclusiveness program development and change at all levels of the 
organization. 

• Wellness focus to help staff and physicians transition out of the Covid 19 pressure 
dome. 

• Planning for how the organization will transition out of Covid 19 operations and focus, 
and how that affects operations, planning, financial recovery, and program opportunities 
within the organization and as partners within the CND OHT and Region. 

• Board learning that will permit it to participate in the direction setting dialogue with 
confidence and understanding. 

• Building greater connections and support with local Municipalities and community groups 
to enhance CMH programs and patient care. 

 
Next Steps for the Board – August & September 
 

• Chair – Board Member 30-minute zoom meetings in August 
• Chair, CEO & COS – Orientation of new board members 
• Chair – Orientation of new Committee Chairs 
• Planning for restart of on-site face to face Board meetings – fall (pending) 

 
Sincere thanks to all Board Members, Senior Staff and Support Staff for your dedication to good 
governance at Cambridge Memorial Hospital. 
 
D. Pyper – Chair of the Board 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Board of Directors of Cambridge Memorial Hospital 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of Cambridge Memorial Hospital (the Hospital), 

which comprise: 

 the statement of financial position as at March 31, 2021 

 the statement of operations for the year then ended 

 the statement of changes in net assets for the year then ended 

 the statement of cash flows for the year then ended 

 and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting 

policies 

(Hereinafter referred to as the “financial statements”). 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material 

respects, the financial position of the Hospital as at March 31, 2021, and its results of 

operations, its changes in net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in 

accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing 

standards.  Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 

“Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section of our 

auditors’ report.   

We are independent of the Hospital in accordance with the ethical requirements that are 

relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada and we have fulfilled our other 

responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. 
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 

provide a basis for our opinion. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance 
for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial 

statements in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards and for such 

internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of 

financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 

error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 

Hospital’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related 

to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management 

either intends to liquidate the Hospital or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative 

but to do so. 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Hospital’s financial 

reporting process. 

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 

as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue 

an auditors’ report that includes our opinion.  

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 

conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always 

detect a material misstatement when it exists.  

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or 

in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions 

of users taken on the basis of the financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, 

we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the 

audit.  
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We also: 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to 

those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 

basis for our opinion.  

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 

one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design 

audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 

expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Hospital's internal control.  

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of 

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 

exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Hospital's 

ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 

we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in 

the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. 

Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 

auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Hospital to cease 

to continue as a going concern. 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 

including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the 

underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 Communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 

the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 

significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.  
 
 

 
 
Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants 
 
Waterloo, Canada 

June 3, 2021 



CAMBRIDGE MEMORIAL HOSPITAL 
Statement of Financial Position 
(Expressed in thousands of dollars) 
 
March 31, 2021, with comparative information for 2020 
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   2021 2020 
 

Assets 
Current assets: 

Cash $ 38,329 $ 30,584 
Due from Ontario Ministry of Health (“MOH”) (note 2) 12,796 1,164 
Other receivables  1,910 2,261 
Inventories  2,399 2,641 
Prepaid expenses  1,562 1,443 
  56,996 38,093 

 
Due from MOH (note 2)  4,153 67,837 
Due from CMH Foundation 3,373 6,560 
Restricted cash (note 3) 18,925 24,911 
Special purpose funds restricted cash (note 4) 187 187 
Capital assets (note 5) 241,672 237,749 
 
  $ 325,306 $ 375,337 
 

Liabilities and Net Assets 
Current liabilities: 

Due to MOH $ 2,315 $ 1,016 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities  28,540 26,465 
Deferred revenue 16,964 6,186 
  47,819 33,667 

 
Capital redevelopment construction payable –   69,925 
Accrued benefit liability (note 6) 4,033 3,950 
Deferred capital contributions (note 7) 240,871 237,919 
 292,723 345,461 

 
Net assets: 

Unrestricted 5,144 4,948 
Externally restricted special purpose funds (note 4) 187 187 
Internally restricted special purpose funds (notes 4 and 8) 27,252 24,741 
  32,583 29,876 

 
Commitments (note 9) 
Contingencies (note 10) 
COVID-19 impacts (note 16) 
 
  $ 325,306 $ 375,337 
 
 
See accompanying notes to financial statements.  
 
On behalf of the Board: 
 
    Director     Director 
 



CAMBRIDGE MEMORIAL HOSPITAL 
Statement of Operations 
(Expressed in thousands of dollars) 
 
Year ended March 31, 2021, with comparative information for 2020 

2 
 

 
  2021 2020 

 
Revenue: 

MOH operating funding (note 15) $ 137,973 $ 109,663 
Billable patient services 12,929 15,015 
Recoveries and miscellaneous revenue 12,521 15,554 
Program specific funding 3,592 3,587 
MOH recoveries 1,943 1,866 
Amortization of deferred capital contributions -  

equipment (note 7) 2,332 1,469 
Interest income 207 575 
  171,497 147,729 

 
Expenses: 

Salaries and wages 77,673 66,352 
Medical staff remuneration 23,906 19,857 
Employee benefits 20,219 17,360 
Supplies and other expense 17,870 15,385 
Medical and surgical supplies 10,928 10,449 
Drugs and medical gases 9,071 8,187 
Program specific expenses 3,592 3,587 
Amortization - equipment 4,929 3,487 
  168,188 144,664 

 
Excess of revenue over expenses  

before undernoted 3,309 3,065 
 
Amortization of deferred contributions - building (note 7) 5,615 2,934 
 
Amortization - building (6,217) (3,522) 
 
Excess of revenue over expenses  $ 2,707 $ 2,477 
 
See accompanying notes to financial statements. 



CAMBRIDGE MEMORIAL HOSPITAL 
Statement of Changes in Net Assets 
(Expressed in thousands of dollars) 
 
Year ended March 31, 2021, with comparative information for 2020 
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   Externally Internally   

   restricted restricted 
  special special 2021 2020 
 Unrestricted purpose funds purpose funds 

    (note 8) Total Total 

 
Balance, beginning of year   $ 4,948 $ 187 $ 24,741 $ 29,876 $ 27,399 
 
Excess (deficiency) of revenue 

over expenses 5,906 –   (3,199) 2,707 2,477 
 
Investment in in restricted special 
    purpose funds (note 8 (b)) (1,238) - 1,238 - - 
 
Interfund transfer (4,472) - 4,472 - - 
 

Balance, end of year $ 5,144 $ 187 $ 27,252 $ 32,583 $ 29,876 

 
See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
 



CAMBRIDGE MEMORIAL HOSPITAL 
Statement of Cash Flows 
(Expressed in thousands of dollars) 
 
Year ended March 31, 2021, with comparative information for 2020 
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  2021 2020 
 
Cash provided by (applied to): 
 
Operations: 

Excess of revenue over expenses  $ 2,707  $ 2,477 
Items not involving cash: 

Amortization of capital assets 11,146 7,009 
Amortization of deferred grants and donations  (7,947) (4,403) 
Change in employee future benefits (note 6) 83 (51) 

Change in non-cash operating working capital (note 11) 2,994  (50,710) 
   8,983  (45,678)  
 
Investing: 

Acquisition and construction of capital assets (15,069) (13,352) 
Capital redevelopment construction payable (69,925) (20) 

  (84,994) (13,372) 
Financing: 
    Change in non-cash capital accounts receivable (note 11) 66,871 –   

Capital donations and grants, net of capital accounts receivable 10,899 13,905 
 77,770 13,905 

 
 
Increase (decrease) in cash 1,759 (45,145) 
 
Cash, beginning of year 55,495 100,640 
 
Cash, end of year $ 57,254 $ 55,495 
 
 
Cash consists of the following: 
 
 
Cash  $ 38,329 $ 30,584 
Restricted cash 18,925 24,911 
 
  $ 57,254 $ 55,495 
 
 
See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

 

 



CAMBRIDGE MEMORIAL HOSPITAL 
Notes to Financial Statements 
(Expressed in thousands of dollars) 
 
Year ended March 31, 2021 
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The Cambridge Memorial Hospital (the “Hospital”) is incorporated without share capital under the 

Corporations Act (Ontario).  The Hospital is an acute care community hospital providing patient 

focused care to the residents of Cambridge, North Dumfries and surrounding areas as part of an 

integrated healthcare system. 

The Hospital is a charitable organization registered under the Income Tax Act (Canada) and, as such, 

is exempt from income taxes and able to issue donation receipts for income tax purposes.  In order to 

maintain its status as an organization registered under the Act, the Hospital must meet certain 

requirements within the Act.  In the opinion of management, these requirements have been met. 

Under the Health Insurance Act and Regulations thereto, the Hospital is primarily funded by the 

Province of Ontario in accordance with the funding arrangements established by the Ontario Ministry 

of Health (the “Ministry” or “MOH”) and the Local Health Integration Network (“LHIN”). The financial 

statements reflect agreed funding arrangements approved by the Ministry. The Hospital has entered 

into an accountability agreement with the Waterloo Wellington LHIN which requires that the Hospital 

meet certain financial and non-financial performance indicators. 

1. Significant accounting policies: 

The financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with the Chartered 

Professional Accountants of Canada Handbook - Public Sector Accounting Standards, including 

the 4200 standards for government not-for-profit organizations. 

There are no remeasurement gains or losses for the years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020.  

Accordingly, a statement of remeasurement gains and losses is not included in these financial 

statements. 

a) Basis of presentation: 

These financial statements do not include the activities of the following non-controlled 

affiliated entities: 

(i) Cambridge Memorial Hospital Foundation: 

The Foundation raises funds to support capital projects and equipment needs of the 

Hospital. 

(ii) Cambridge Memorial Hospital Volunteer Association: 

The Volunteer Association supports the volunteer programs directed by the Volunteer 

Association of the Hospital and raises funds for the support of the Hospital. 

The financial information of these entities is reported separately from the Hospital. 

b) Inventories: 

Inventories are valued at the lower of average cost and replacement value.  Provisions are 

made for any obsolete or unusable inventory on hand. 



CAMBRIDGE MEMORIAL HOSPITAL 
Notes to Financial Statements 
(Expressed in thousands of dollars) 
 
Year ended March 31, 2021 
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

c) Capital assets: 

Capital assets are recorded at cost less accumulated amortization.  The Hospital records 

amortization of its capital assets on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the 

asset at the following annual rates: 

 

 
Land improvements  2 - 25 years 
Building  10 - 40 years 
Equipment  3 - 20 years 
 
 

No amortization is recorded on capital projects in progress. 

d) Revenue recognition: 

The Hospital follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions, which include 

donations and government grants.  

Under the Health Insurance Act and the regulations thereto, the Hospital is funded primarily 

by the Province of Ontario in accordance with budget arrangements established by the MOH.  

These financial statements reflect agreed funding arrangements approved by the Ministry 

with respect to the year ended March 31, 2021. 

To the extent which MOH funding has been received with the stipulated requirement that the 

Hospital provide specific services, for example, provide a contracted volume of service, and 

these services have not yet been provided, the funding is deferred until such time as the 

services are performed and the monies spent.  In the event that the services are not 

performed in accordance with the funding requirements, the funds received in excess of 

monies spent could be recovered by the MOH. 

Revenue from patients and other sources is recognized as the services are performed, if the 

amount to be received can be reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably assured. 

Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue when received or receivable, if the 

amount to be received can be reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably assured. 

Externally restricted contributions, other than endowment contributions, are recognized as 

revenue in the year in which the related expenses are recognized.  Contributions restricted 

for the purchase of capital assets are deferred and amortized into revenue on a straight-line 

basis, at a rate corresponding with the amortization rate of the related capital assets. 
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Notes to Financial Statements 
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Year ended March 31, 2021 
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

e) Employee future benefits: 

(i) Multi-employer plan: 

Defined contribution plan accounting is applied to the multi-employer defined benefit 

Hospitals of Ontario Pension Plan (“HOOPP”) for which the Hospital does not have the 

necessary information to apply defined benefit plan accounting.  The costs of the multi-

employer defined contribution pension plan benefits are the employer's contributions due 

to the plan in the period. 

(ii) Defined benefit plan: 

The Hospital accrues its obligations under employee defined benefit dental and health 

care plans, and the related costs as the employees render the services necessary to earn 

the future benefits.  The Hospital offers the plan to five groups of employees as described 

in note 6. 

The cost of the accrued benefit obligations for retirement benefits earned by employees 

is actuarially determined using the projected benefit method prorated on service and 

management’s best estimate of retirement ages and expected health care costs.   

Past service costs arising from plan amendments are recognized immediately in the 

period the plan amendments occur.   

Actuarial gains (losses) on the accrued benefit obligation arise from differences between 

actual and expected experience and from changes in the actuarial assumptions used to 

determine the accrued benefit obligation.  The net accumulated actuarial gains (losses) 

are amortized over the average remaining service period of active employees.  The 

average remaining service period of the active employees covered by the defined benefit 

dental and health care plan is 14 years (2020 - 12 years). 

f) Deferred capital contributions: 

Capital grants and donations received by the Hospital are deferred and amortized on a 

straight-line basis at a rate corresponding with the amortization rate for the related assets 

purchased. 
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Notes to Financial Statements 
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued):  

g) Measurement uncertainty: 

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and 

assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 

contingent assets and liabilities at the dates of the financial statements and the reported 

amounts of revenue and expenses during the year. Significant items subject to such 

estimates and assumptions include the carrying amount of accrued benefit liability, capital 

assets and accounts payable and accrued liabilities and valuation allowances for receivables.  

Actual results could differ from those estimates.  

The amount of revenue recognized from the Ministry and the LHIN requires some estimation. 

The Hospital has entered into accountability agreements that set out rights and obligations of 

the parties in respect of funding provided to the Hospital by the Waterloo Wellington LHIN for 

the year ended March 31, 2021. The accountability agreements set out certain performance 

standards and obligations that establish acceptable results for the Hospital’s performance in 

a number of areas. 

If the Hospital does not meet its performance standards or obligations, the Ministry and the 

LHIN may have the right to adjust funding received. Neither the Ministry nor the LHIN are 

required to communicate certain funding adjustments until after submission of year end data. 

Since this data is not submitted until after the completion of the financial statements, the 

amount of the Ministry/LHIN funding received during a year may be increased or decreased 

subsequent to year end. The amount of revenue recognized in these financial statements 

represents management’s best estimates of amounts that have been earned during the year. 

The MOH, through the LHIN, has implemented a provincial funding model using the Health 

Based Allocation Model (“HBAM”), Quality Based Procedures (“QBP”), Post Construction 

Operating Plan (“PCOP”), and Global funding.  The result of utilizing this new model has led 

to some funding uncertainty due to a focus on efficiency and outcomes, driven by rates and 

service levels. 

h) Contributed services: 

Volunteers contribute numerous hours to assist the Hospital in carrying out certain charitable 

aspects of its service delivery activities.  The fair value of these contributed services is not 

readily determinable and is not reflected in these financial statements. 

i) Financial instruments: 

Financial instruments are recorded at fair value on initial recognition.  Derivative instruments 

and equity instruments that are quoted in an active market are reported at fair value.  All 

other financial instruments are subsequently recorded at cost or amortized cost unless 

management has elected to carry the instruments at fair value.  

Unrealized changes in fair value are recognized in the statement of remeasurement gains 

and losses until they are realized, when they are transferred to the statement of operations.  
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued):  

i) Financial instruments (continued): 

Transaction costs incurred on the acquisition of financial instruments measured subsequently 

at fair value are expensed as incurred.  All other financial instruments are adjusted by 

transaction costs incurred on acquisition and financing costs, which are amortized using the 

straight-line method. 

All financial assets are assessed for impairment on an annual basis.  When a decline is 

determined to be other than temporary, the amount of the loss is reported in the statement of 

operations and any unrealized gain is adjusted through the statement of remeasurement 

gains and losses. 

When the asset is sold, the unrealized gains and losses previously recognized in the 

statement of remeasurement gains and losses are reversed and recognized in the statement 

of operations. 

Long-term payables are recorded at cost. 

The Standards require an organization to classify fair value measurements using a fair value 

hierarchy, which includes three levels of information that may be used to measure fair value: 

 Level 1 - Unadjusted quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets or 

liabilities 

 Level 2 - Observable or corroborated inputs, other than level 1, such as quoted prices 

for similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets or market data for substantially the 

full term of the assets or liabilities 

 Level 3 - Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and 

that are significant to the fair value of the assets and liabilities. 

As at March 31, 2021, all financial assets of the hospital are held as cash and, as a result, 

are categorized as level 1. 
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2. Due from Ontario Ministry of Health: 
 
    2021 2020 
 
Operating     $ 12,796 $ 1,164 
Capital: 
 Capital redevelopment project     4,153  67,837 
 
     $ 16,949 $ 69,001 
 

3. Restricted cash: 

Restricted cash consists of funds advanced by the MOH and the Cambridge Memorial Hospital 

Foundation for the following: 
 
    2021 2020 
 
Capital redevelopment project    $ 18,267 $ 24,188 
Hospital Infrastructure Renewal Fund     658  723 
 
     $ 18,925 $ 24,911 
 

4. Special Purpose Funds: 

a) Externally restricted special purpose funds: 

The net assets include $187 (2020 - $187) designated for specific purposes. 

b) Internally restricted special purpose funds: 

The net assets include $27,252 (2020 - $24,741) invested in capital assets. 
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5. Capital assets: 
 

    2021 2020 
   Accumulated Net book Net book 
  Cost amortization value value 
 
Land  $ 961 $ –   $ 961 $ 937 
Land improvements  1,256  951  305  313 
Buildings  243,294  45,877  197,417  202,416 
Equipment  81,677  56,426  25,251  23,799 
Construction in progress  17,738  –    17,738  10,284 
 
  $ 344,926 $ 103,254  $ 241,672 $ 237,749 

 

The Hospital, working with Infrastructure Ontario, Ministry of Health and Project Co (Zurich 

Insurance Company Ltd.), have reached agreement on Minutes of Settlement (“MOS”) that 

preserve the terms of the original Project Agreement (“PA”) for the capital redevelopment project 

and confirm that phase 3 will be completed in forty-eight months at the original agreed upon PA 

cost plus change orders and or delay costs if they are incurred.  In addition, the MOS provides 

resolution to all outstanding legal issues that occurred during phase 1 and 2 of the project. 

The PA has an estimated cost of $276,397 (2020 - $252,393) including change orders of $3,265 

(2020 - $2,827). The contractor's updated estimated date of completion is February 2025  

however this date could be altered as a result of the approval of change orders to the PA.  

Funding for the PA will be $244,065 (2020 - $220,152) from the MOH and $32,332 (2020 – 

$32,241) from the Cambridge Memorial Hospital Foundation (“CMH Foundation”). 

As at March 31, 2021, the Hospital has incurred PA costs of $199,831 (2020 - $194,053). The PA 

costs include $63,677 (2020 - $57,900) of related project costs that include planning and design, 

of which $48,592 (2020 - $43,465) have been funded by the Ministry and $15,085 (2020 - 

$14,435) funded by the CMH Foundation.  

On November 8, 2019, the Hospital reached Interim Completion on Phase 2 of the PA and moved 

into the new facility on January 18, 2020. A lump sum payment of $65,000 less deficiencies and 

delay claim plus taxes was made.  The Ministry funded $58,377 and the CMH Foundation funded 

$6,623. 

On November 25, 2020, a second payment was made as per the MOS which consisted of a 

payment of $70,792 plus deficiencies, change orders and taxes as settlement for the final 

obligation of phase 1 and phase 2 of the PA and an agreement that no party will take further legal 

action regarding any dispute from phase 1 and phase 2 of the PA.  The Ministry obligation was 

$63,713 and the CMH Foundation obligation was $7,079. 

Terms of the agreement for phase 3 have changed resulting in monthly payments being made to 

Project Co. for work completed less a holdback.  The previous agreement required one lump sum 

payment less holdback at the end of phase 3. 
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6. Pension and other post-employment benefits: 

a) Accrued benefit liability: 

The Hospital has an unfunded defined benefit dental, health care and life insurance plan for 

two groups of employees and retirees with post retirement benefits.  The Hospital measures 

its liability for accounting purposes based on the most recent actuarial valuation which 

occurred at April 1, 2020, together with projection of these results to March 31, 2021.  The 

next required actuarial valuation is April 1, 2023.  Information about the Hospital’s defined 

benefit plans as at March 31 is as follows: 
 
 2021 2020 
 
Accrued benefit liability, beginning of year $ 3,950 $ 4,001 
Benefit expense  285 106 
Benefits paid  (202) (157) 
 
Accrued benefit liability, end of year $ 4,033 $ 3,950 
 

The significant actuarial assumptions adopted in the measuring of the Hospital’s accrued 

benefit obligations are as follows: 
 

  2021 2020 
 
Accrued benefit obligation (at end of year): 

Discount rate  3.21% 3.37% 
Dental cost increases  3.00% 2.75% 
Medical cost increases  5.57% 5.75% 

  reducing to reducing to  
  4.50% in 2025 4.50% in 2025 

Benefit costs (for fiscal year): 
Discount rate   3.37% 3.37% 

 

b) Reconciliation of accrued benefit obligation to accrued benefit liability: 
 

 2021 2020 
 
Accrued benefit obligation, end of year $ 3,420 $ 2,612 
Add: unamortized net actuarial gain 613  1,338 
 
Accrued benefit liability, end of year $ 4,033 $ 3,950 
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6. Pension and other post-employment benefits (continued): 

c) Net benefit (recovery) costs recognized: 
 

 2021 2020 
 
Current service costs $ 231 $ 121 
Interest costs 111 87 
Amortization of net actuarial gain (57) (102) 
Total net benefit costs recognized 285 106 
 
Cash paid - employer contributions (202) (157) 
 
Net benefit (recovery) costs recognized $ 83 $ (51) 
 

d) Pension plan: 

Substantially all of the employees of the Hospital are eligible to be members of HOOPP, 

which is a multi-employer high five average pay contributory pension plan.  As HOOPP’s 

assets and liabilities are not segmented by participating employer, the Hospital accounts for 

its HOOPP obligation on a cash basis (as a defined contribution plan). The most recent 

actuarial valuation of the plan indicates that the plan has a surplus of $24.1 billion (2019 - 

$20.6 billion) as of December 31, 2020. 

Employer contributions made to the plan during the year by the Hospital amounted to $6,544 

(2020 - $5,948).  These amounts are included in employee benefits expense in the statement 

of operations. 

 

7. Deferred capital contributions: 

Deferred capital contributions represent the unamortized amount of contributions received for the 

purchase of capital assets. 
 
  2021 2020 
 
Balance, beginning of year $ 237,919 $ 154,020 
 
Add contributions received/receivable for capital purposes: 

Ministry of Health 10,726 81,477 
Cambridge Memorial Hospital Foundation 173 6,825 
  10,899 88,302 

Less amortization of deferred capital contributions: 
Equipment (2,332) (1,469) 
Buildings (5,615) (2,934) 

 
Balance, end of year $ 240,871 $ 237,919 
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8. Internally restricted - special purpose funds: 

a) Internally restricted - special purpose funds are calculated as follows: 
 
   2021 2020 
 
Capital assets   $ 241,672 $ 237,749 
 
Amounts financed by:  
Restricted cash (note 3)  18,925 24,911 
Deferred capital contributions (note 7)  (240,871) (237,919) 
Due from MOH (note 2)  4,153 - 
Due from Foundation  3,373 - 
 
    $ 27,252 $ 24,741 
 

b) Excess of revenue over expenses are calculated as follows: 
 
   2021 2020 
 
Amortization of capital assets   $ (11,146) $ (7,009) 
Amortization of deferred capital contributions  7,947 4,403 
 
Deficiency of revenue over expenses   $ (3,199) $ (2,606) 
 

c) Change in internally restricted – special purpose funds calculated as follows: 
 
   2021 2020 
 
Capital assets - additions   $ 15,069 $ 13,352 
Deferred capital contributions – grants   (10,899) (88,302) 
Change in restricted cash  (5,986) 11,282 
Change in capital redevelopment construction payable 69,925 69,945 
Due from MOH  (63,684) - 
Due from Foundation  (3,187) - 
 
    $ 1,238 $ 6,277 
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9. Commitments:  

a) Lease commitments: 

The Hospital is committed to minimum annual lease payments as follows: 

 
 
2022 $ 288 
2023 178 
2024 167 
2025 135 
 
 $ 768 
 

b) Service commitments: 

The Hospital is a member of a group of 40 hospitals, long-term care facilities and health 

authorities within Ontario that voluntarily entered into a joint agreement for the purpose of 

planning, developing, implementing and operating a regional supply chain service consisting 

of procurement and contract negotiation.  

During the year, the Hospital incurred expenditures of $178 (2020 - $155) to Mohawk 

Medbuy for services.  The Mohawk Medbuy agreement automatically renews and has a two-

year notice period.  The annual fee is determined each year based on cost changes incurred 

by Mohawk Medbuy, member hospital medical surgical consumption, changes in the level of 

service received by Mohawk Medbuy and changes to the membership of Mohawk Medbuy.  

The expected cost will remain unchanged from 2020. These costs are included in supplies 

and other expenses on the statement of operations. 

The Hospital is a member of the Southwestern Ontario Diagnostic Imaging Network 

(“SWODIN”) as part of a 3-year agreement.  This project gives authorized health care 

providers access to diagnostic images and corresponding reports from hospitals and 

independent health facilities across multiple LHINs. The services are provided on a cost 

recovery basis. Ongoing fees are based on volumes of exams and are estimated to be $105 

annually. This project receives financial support from Canada Health Infoway and eHealth 

Ontario. 

c) Letter of credit: 

The Hospital issued a standby letter of credit through its financial institution to provide 

guarantees to City of Cambridge for $200 due September 13, 2021, Energy + Inc. for $560 

due on January 11, 2022, Energy + Inc. for $1,133 due March 20, 2022, Energy + Inc. for 

$202 due June 5, 2021. 
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10. Contingencies:  

a) The nature of the Hospital activities is such that there is usually litigation pending or in 

prospect at any time.  With respect to claims at March 31, 2021, management believes the 

Hospital has valid defenses and/or appropriate insurance coverage in place.  In the event any 

claims are successful, management believes that such claims are not expected to have a 

material effect on the Hospital’s financial position. 

The Hospital is a member of the Healthcare Insurance Reciprocal of Canada (“HIROC”) and 

therefore has an economic interest in HIROC.  HIROC is a pooling of the liability insurance 

risks of its members.  All members of the pool pay annual premiums, which are actuarially 

determined.  All members are subject to reassessment for losses, if any, experienced by the 

pool for the years in which they are members and these losses could be material.  No 

reassessments have been made to March 31, 2021. 

Since its inception in 1987, HIROC has accumulated an unappropriated surplus, which is the 

total of premiums paid by all subscribers plus investment income, less the obligation for 

claims reserves and expenses and operating expenses. As at December 31, 2020, the 

Hospital’s plan is in a surplus position. Each subscriber, who has an excess of premium plus 

investment income over the obligation for their allocation of claims reserves and expenses 

and operating expenses, may be entitled to receive distributions of their share of the 

unappropriated surplus at the time such distributions are declared by the Board of Directors 

at HIROC.  HIROC distributed $nil to the hospital for the year ended March 31, 2021 (2020 - 

$66). 

b) The Hospital has received funding from the MOH and Waterloo Wellington LHIN for specific 

services.  Pursuant to the related agreements, if the Hospital does not meet specified levels 

of activity, the Ministry and the Waterloo Wellington LHIN are entitled to recover funds.  Such 

recoveries are recognized as a liability owing to these parties in the relevant fiscal period. 
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11. Supplemental cash flow information: 

a) Net change in non-cash operating working capital balances: 
 

  2021 2020 
 
Accounts receivable not applicable to capital assets $ (11,281)  $ 5,589 
Inventories 242 (664) 
Prepaid expenses (119) 2 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities not applicable 

to capital assets 14,152 (55,637) 
 

Net change in non-cash operating working capital balances $ 2,994 $ (50,710) 
 

b) Non-cash reconciling items: 
 

  2021 2020 
 
Non-cash capital donations and grants $ –    $ 74,397 
Change in non-cash accounts receivable 66,871 (74,397) 

 
  $ 66,871 $ –   
 

12. Financial risks: 

a) Market risk: 

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, foreign exchange rates or interest rates 

will affect the Hospital’s surplus or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The 

objective of market risk management is to control market risk exposures within acceptable 

parameters while optimizing return on investment. 

b) Interest rate risk: 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will 

fluctuate because of changes in the market interest rates. 

Financial assets and financial liabilities with variable interest rates expose the Hospital to 

cash flow interest rate risk. The Hospital is exposed to this risk through to its interest-bearing 

demand loan payable. 

The Hospital has financing available in the form of a demand loan which is not drawn at year 

end.  The loan bears interest at the bank's prime lending rate minus 0.85% and is payable 

monthly. 
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12. Financial risks (continued): 

c) Credit risk: 

Credit risk is the risk that counterparties fail to perform as contracted, resulting in a financial 

loss. The Hospital is exposed to credit risk with respect to its accounts receivable and cash.  

The Hospital assesses, on a continuous basis, accounts receivable and provides for any 

amounts that are not collectible in the allowance for doubtful accounts.  The maximum 

exposure to credit risk of the Hospital at March 31, 2021 is the carrying value of these assets. 

The carrying amount of accounts receivable is valued with consideration for an allowance for 

doubtful accounts.  The amount of any related impairment loss is recognized in the statement 

of operations.  Subsequent recoveries of impairment losses related to accounts receivable 

are credited to the statement of operations.  The balance of the allowance for doubtful 

accounts at March 31, 2021 is $558 (2020 - $575). 

As at March 31, 2021, $1,159 (2020 - $1,544) of third-party accounts receivable were past 

due, but not impaired.  

d) Liquidity risk: 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Hospital will not be able to meet all cash outflow obligations 

as they come due.  The Hospital mitigates this risk by monitoring cash activities and expected 

outflows.  The Hospital has developed a multi-year cash flow strategy. 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities are generally due within 60 days of receipt of an 

invoice. 

There have been no other significant changes from the previous period in the exposure to 

risk or policies, procedures and methods used to measure the risk. 
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13. Related party transactions: 

a) Cambridge Memorial Hospital Foundation: 

The Hospital has an economic interest in the Cambridge Memorial Hospital Foundation (the 

“Foundation”).  During the year, the Foundation granted $5,227 (2020 - $452) to the Hospital 

to fund capital equipment, building renovations and education.  The accounts of the 

Foundation are not included in these financial statements. 

b) Cambridge Memorial Hospital Volunteer Association: 

The Cambridge Memorial Hospital Volunteer Association (the “Volunteer Association”) is an 

independent organization which raises funds and contributes these funds to the Hospital for 

capital and program funding purposes.  The accounts of the Volunteer Association are not 

included in these financial statements. 

 

14. Credit facilities: 

a) The Hospital has available to it a $7,000 revolving demand loan from the bank to finance 

general operating requirements.  This facility is available by way of the bank’s prime based 

loans or overdrafts at the bank’s prime lending rate minus 0.85% per annum or bankers’ 

acceptances with a stamping fee of 0.40% per annum. 

b) The Hospital has available to it a $7,000 term facility from the bank to finance the 

redevelopment project.  This facility is available by way of multiple draws permitted up to the 

credit limit amortized over twenty-five years quoted by the bank at the time of borrowing. 

c) The Hospital has available to it a $6,000 committed interest only facility to finance capital 

equipment.  The loan is amortized over five years quoted by the bank at the time of 

borrowing.   
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15. Ministry of Health pandemic funding: 

In connection with the ongoing coronavirus pandemic (“COVID-19”), the MOH has announced a 

number of funding programs intended to assist hospitals with incremental operating and capital 

costs and revenue decreases resulting from COVID-19. 

While the MOH has provided guidance with respect to the maximum amount of funding potentially 

available to the Hospital, as well as criteria for eligibility and revenue recognition, this guidance 

continues to evolve and is subject to revision and clarification subsequent to the time of approval 

of these financial statements.  The MOH has also indicated that all funding related to COVID-19 

is subject to review and reconciliation, with the potential for adjustments during the subsequent 

fiscal year.  

Management’s estimate of MOH revenue for COVID-19 is based on the most recent guidance 

provided by MOH and the impacts of COVID-19 on the Hospital’s operations, revenues and 

expenses.  As a result of Management’s estimation process, the Hospital has recognized 

amounts that are considered by Management to be realistic, supportable and consistent with the 

guidance provided by the MOH.  Given the potential for future changes to funding programs that 

could be announced by the MOH, the Hospital has recognized revenue related to COVID-19 

using a conservative approach and has recorded a provision for future funding changes. Any 

adjustments to Management’s estimate of MOH revenues will be reflected in the Hospital’s 

financial statements in the year of settlement.  

Details of the MOH funding for COVID-19 recognized as revenue in the current year are 

summarized below: 

 
    

Funding for incremental COVID-19 operating expenses $  10,480 

Funding for non-ministry revenue losses resulting from COVID-19  2,957 

Broad-based funding reconciliation for other eligible costs 

   and non-ministry revenue losses  2,030 

 
Total revenue recognized  $ 15,467 
 

In addition to the above, the Hospital has also recognized $1,434 in MOH funding for COVID-19 

related capital expenditures, which has been recorded as an addition to deferred capital 

contributions during the year.   

 



CAMBRIDGE MEMORIAL HOSPITAL 
Notes to Financial Statements 
(Expressed in thousands of dollars) 
 
Year ended March 31, 2021 
 

 

21 
 

16. COVID-19 impacts: 

In response to COVID-19 and consistent with guidance provided by the MOH and other 

government agencies, the Hospital has implemented a number of measures to protect patients 

and staff from COVID-19.  In addition, the Hospital has actively contributed towards the care of 

COVID-19 patients and the delivery of programs that protect public health.     

The Hospital continues to respond to the Ministry of Health’s requests to increase capacity for 

inpatient acute and critical care beds during the 2022 fiscal year to meet the new needs of the 

community resulting from the pandemic.  Management has assessed the impact of COVID-19 

and believes there are no significant financial issues that compromise its ongoing operations.  

The outcome and timeframe to a recovery from the current pandemic is highly unpredictable, thus 

it is not practicable to estimate and disclose its effect on future operations at this time.  
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Stacey Stahlmann, CPA, CA 

Audit Senior Manager  
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How do we deliver audit quality?  
Quality essentially means doing the right thing and remains our highest priority. Our Global Quality Framework outlines how we deliver quality and how 
every partner and staff member contributes to its delivery. 

    

Doing the right thing. Always. 

‘Perform quality engagements’ sits at the core along with 
our commitment to continually monitor and remediate to fulfil 
on our quality drivers.  

Our quality value drivers are the cornerstones to our approach 
underpinned by the supporting drivers and give clear direction 
to encourage the right behaviours in delivering audit quality. 

We define ‘audit quality’ as being the outcome when: 

– audits are executed consistently, in line with the 
requirements and intent of applicable professional 
standards within a strong system of quality controls; and  

– all of our related activities are undertaken in an environment 
of the utmost level of objectivity, independence, ethics, 
and integrity.  

Transparency report      

 

https://home.kpmg/content/dam/kpmg/ca/pdf/2020/12/2020-audit-quality-and-transparency-report.pdf
https://home.kpmg/content/dam/kpmg/ca/pdf/2020/12/2020-audit-quality-and-transparency-report.pdf
https://home.kpmg/content/dam/kpmg/ca/pdf/2020/12/2020-audit-quality-and-transparency-report.pdf
https://home.kpmg/content/dam/kpmg/ca/pdf/2020/12/2020-audit-quality-and-transparency-report.pdf
https://home.kpmg/content/dam/kpmg/ca/pdf/2020/12/2020-audit-quality-and-transparency-report.pdf
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Executive summary 
Purpose of this report1 
The purpose of this Audit Findings Report is to assist you, as a member of the Audit Committee, in your review of the results of our audit of the financial 
statements as at and for the period ended March 31, 2021.  This Audit Findings Report builds on the Audit Plan we presented to the Audit Committee.  

What’s new in 2021 

There have been significant changes in 2021 which impacted financial reporting, 
the Hospital’s internal control over financial reporting and our audit: 

• COVID-19 pandemic – See pages 5 - 6 
• New CAS auditing standards – See page 7 

 

Changes from the audit plan 

Subsequent to the issuance of our Audit Plan, the Ministry of Health (“MOH”) 
announced a number of funding programs for COVID-19 impacts, provided 
additional clarification with respect to the reimbursement of incremental COVID-19 
operating and capital costs and indicated the requirement for special reports 
relating to incremental pandemic costs.  The new funding programs and guidance 
have resulted in additional audit work over revenue recognition and measurement 
uncertainty, as well as additional financial statement disclosure.   

 

 

 

 
1 This Audit Findings Report is intended solely for the information and use of Management, the Audit Committee, and the Board of Directors and should not be used for any other purpose or any other 
party. KPMG shall have no responsibility or liability for loss or damages or claims, if any, to or by any third party as this Audit Findings Report has not been prepared for, and is not intended for, and 
should not be used by, any third party or for any other purpose. 

Finalizing the audit 

As of May 18, 2021, we have completed the audit of the financial statements, with 
the exception of certain remaining procedures, which include amongst others: 

– Obtaining legal confirmations from external legal counsel 
– Completing remaining audit, review and quality control procedures 
– Completing our discussions with the Audit Committee 
– Obtaining evidence of the Board’s approval of the financial statements 
– Receipt of the signed management representation letters 

We will update the Audit Committee, and not solely the Chair, on significant 
matters, if any, arising from the completion of the audit, including the completion of 
the above procedures.  

Our auditors’ report will be dated upon the completion of any remaining procedures. 
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Uncorrected differences 

KPMG identified one uncorrected audit difference with no impact on income or total 
net assets.  See page 22. 

Significant accounting policies and practices 

There have been no initial selections of, or changes to, significant accounting 
policies and practices to bring to your attention. 

Control deficiencies  

We did not identify any control deficiencies that we determined to be significant 
deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting. 

Independence 

We have included a copy of our annual independence letter dated as of the date of 
this report, which notes that we are independent of the Hospital in accordance with 
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in 
Canada.  
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What’s new in 2021 
COVID-19 pandemic 
On January 18, 2021, we communicated our audit plan including items arising from the impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic. 

Area of Impact Key Observations 

Hospital’s financial 
reporting impacts  
 

– We considered impacts to financial reporting due to COVID-19 pandemic and the increased disclosures needed in the financial statements 
as a result of the significant judgements.  

– In areas of the financial statements where estimates involved significant judgements, we evaluated whether the method, assumptions and 
data used by management to derive the accounting estimates, and their related financial statement disclosures were still appropriate per the 
relevant financial reporting framework given the changed economic conditions and increased estimation uncertainty. 

– The areas of the financial statements most affected included: 

o Revenue and expenses 

o Accounts payable and deferred revenue 

o Disclosures  

Hospital’s internal 
control over financial 
reporting   

– As part of our risk assessment we examined the financial reporting risks, including fraud risks, given possible new pressures on 
management or new opportunities to commit fraud. 

– In areas of the audit where we are evaluating controls, we obtained an understanding of any changes to processes and controls during the 
year to assess if there was a need to change the extent of testing. No changes were noted that had a significant impact on the scope of 
audit work. 

Materiality  
 

– We considered impacts to financial reporting on both the determination and the re-assessment of materiality for the audit of the financial 
statements. 

– No adjustment to overall materiality was considered necessary. 

– KPMG did apply a lower level of materiality for selecting samples in our testing of COVID-19 capital and operating expenditures and related 
revenues.  This will allow us to leverage off this work for the purpose of our future attestation on the MOH operating and capital settlement 
reports. 
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COVID-19 pandemic (continued) 

Area of Impact Key Observations 

Risk Assessment 
– We performed a risk assessment specifically targeted at the impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic, including an assessment of fraud risk 

factors (i.e., conditions or events that may be indicative of an incentive/pressure to commit fraud, opportunities to commit fraud, 
rationalizations of committing fraud). 

Working remotely 

– We used virtual work rooms, video conferencing, and internally shared team sites to collaborate in real-time, both amongst the audit team 
as well as with management. 

– We used secure and innovative technologies to conduct walkthroughs and performed tests of controls. 

– We increased our professional skepticism when evaluating electronic evidence received and performed additional procedures to validate the 
authenticity and reliability of electronic information used as audit evidence. 

Direction and 
Supervision of the 
audit 

– The manager and partner were actively involved in determining the impact that the COVID-19 pandemic had on the audit (as discussed 
above), including the impact on the Hospital’s financial reporting and changes in the Hospital’s internal control over financial reporting.  

– Managers and partner implemented new supervision processes to deal with working in a remote environment, and our audit approach 
allowed us to manage the audit using meaningful milestones and frequent touch points. 

Substantive Testing - 
Response 

– Our evaluation of management’s assessment of going concern was enhanced to respond to the uncertainties relating to prospective 
financial information and judgements about appropriate financial statement disclosures in the rapidly changing environment. 
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New auditing standards 
The following new auditing standards that are effective for the current year had an impact on our audit. 

 

 Standard Key observations 

CAS 540, Auditing Accounting 
Estimates and Related Disclosures 

 

– The new standard was applied on all estimates within the financial statements that had a risk of material misstatement due to 
estimation uncertainty and not just “key estimates”, “critical accounting estimates”, or “estimates with significant risk”. 

– The granularity and complexity of the new standard along with our interpretation of the application of that standard necessitated 
more planning and discussion and increased involvement of more senior members of the engagement team. 

– We performed more granular risk assessments based on the elements making up each accounting estimate such as the method, 
the assumptions used, the data used and the application of the method. 

– We considered the potential for management bias. 

– We assessed the degree of uncertainty, complexity, and subjectivity involved in making each accounting estimate to determine the 
level of audit response; the higher the level of response, the more persuasive the audit evidence was needed. 

– We involved professionals with appropriate skills and knowledge to assist us in auditing certain estimates as appropriate. 

 

  



 

 Audit Findings Report  P a g e  | 8 

Audit risks and results 
We highlight our significant findings in respect of areas of focus as identified in our discussion with you in the Audit Plan, as well as any additional areas of 
focus identified.    

Area of focus Why is it significant? 

Fraud Risk from Revenue Recognition  

 

This is a presumed fraud risk under Canadian auditing standards. 

There exists a risk of error in the completeness of revenue claw back accruals or accuracy of deferred 
revenues for funding agreements which include conditions for recognition. 

Fraud risk from management override of controls This is a presumed fraud risk under Canadian auditing standards.  

We have not identified any specific additional risks of management override relating to this audit. 

Our response and Significant findings 

– KPMG ensured revenue is recorded in the appropriate period through review of year-end cut-off, tested through revenue accruals as at year-end.  There were no 
issues with recorded revenue accruals at year-end. In addition, there were no changes noted in revenue recognition policies throughout the audit process. 

– We tested the design and implementation of controls surrounding the review of journal entries, and the business rationale for significant entries. 

– Using our Data & Analytics tool, IDEA Smart Analyzer, we analyzed 100% of the journal entries posted during the year. 

– In responding to risks of fraud and management override of controls, we set specific criteria to isolate high risk journal entries and adjustments in order to analyze for 
further insights into our audit procedures and findings. We focused on journal entries recorded and posted as part of the year-end closing process. 

– We tested the process for critical accounting estimates, including performing a retrospective review of prior period estimates. 

– No issues were noted in the performance of the above procedures. 
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Audit risks and results 
Other area of focus Why are we focusing here? 

COVID-19 funding Risk of misstatement related to the accuracy of revenue recognition for COVID-19 related funding. 

In connection with the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic, the MOH announced a number of funding programs intended to assist hospitals 
with incremental operating and capital costs and revenue decreases resulting from COVID-19. In addition to these funding programs, 
the MOH is also permitting hospitals to redirect unused funding from certain programs towards COVID-19 costs, lost revenue and other 
budgetary pressures through a broad-based funding reconciliation. 

While the MOH has provided guidance with respect to the maximum amount of funding potentially available to the Hospital, as well as 
criteria for eligibility and revenue recognition, this guidance continues to evolve and is subject to revision and clarification subsequent to 
the time of approval of these financial statements.  The MOH has also indicated that all funding related to COVID-19 is subject to 
review and reconciliation, with the potential for adjustments during the subsequent fiscal year. 

Our Response & Significant Findings 

Management’s estimate of MOH revenue for COVID-19 is based on the most recent guidance provided by MOH and the impacts of COVID-19 on the Hospital’s operations, 
revenues and expenses.  As a result of Management’s estimation process, the Hospital has recognized amounts that are considered by Management to be realistic, 
supportable and consistent with the guidance provided by the MOH.  Given the potential for future changes to funding programs that could be announced by the MOH, 
adjustments to Management’s estimate of MOH revenues will be reflected in the Hospital’s financial statements in the year of settlement. 

During the year, the Hospital recognized Ministry funding for the COVID-19 pandemic made up of the following: 

Funding for incremental COVID-19 operating expenses $10.5 million 

Funding for revenue losses resulting from COVID-19 $3 million 

Broad-based funding reconciliation for other eligible costs and revenue losses $2 million 

The Hospital also recognized $1.4 million in funding for COVID-19 capital expenditures. 

Included in MOH receivable is $11.4 million relating to funding not yet received for the operating and capital expense submissions, lost revenue funding, and PPE 
purchases. Included in deferred revenue is $115,000 related to unspent COVID-19 funding for the assessment centre that can be utilized beyond March 31, 2021. 

KPMG did apply a lower level of materiality for selecting samples in our testing of COVID-19 capital and operating expenditures and related revenues.  This will allow us to 
leverage off this work for the purpose of our future attestation on the MOH operating and capital settlement reports, and the MOH lost non-ministry revenue attestation form. 



 

 Audit Findings Report  P a g e  | 10 

Our audit procedures in this area included: 

– Reviewing all pandemic-related funding agreements for eligibility criteria and funding periods.  

– Obtained an understanding of the Hospital’s processes for identifying and reporting incremental pandemic-related costs. 

– Testing both payroll, non-payroll operating expenses, and capital expenditures utilizing substantive sampling techniques and ensured amounts existed, were accurate, 
and were in accordance with the funding agreements. 

– KPMG obtained management’s analysis for lost revenues resulting from COVID-19.  KPMG performed procedures to assess the reasonableness of amounts 
recognized in revenue during the year period based on direction provided by Ministry. 

– We have reviewed and management’s determination of MOH funding transferred from other programs (QBP’s, CCO, wait times, PCOP, etc.) towards other eligible 
costs and revenue losses (so-called broad-funding reconciliation), with consideration given to the most recent guidance provided by the MOH with respect to eligibility 
criteria and the requirement to apply budgetary savings against other funding pressures.  As part of the COVID-19 broad-based funding reconciliation, the Hospital 
recognized approximately $2,030,000 in unearned QBP volume-based revenues, as permitted by the MOH. 

– Performed analytical review comparing current year actual surplus to the prior year as well we the budget/H-SAA to determine overall reasonableness of revenue 
recognized. 

– KPMG recalculated the amount of unspent funds and reviewed the agreements to determine if the amounts will be required to be paid back to the Ministry and therefore 
should be presented as an accrued liability on the statement of financial position, or whether funds would be permitted to be used subsequent to March 31, 2021, which 
would suggest amounts be recorded as deferred revenue. 

As a result of our audit procedures, no issues or audit misstatement was identified. 
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Audit risks and results 
Other area of focus Why are we focusing here? 

Revenues, including QBP funding and 
grants pertaining to special projects 

To ensure the existence, completeness and accuracy of revenue. 

To ensure that new/late funding has been appropriately accounted for. 

Our Response & Significant Findings 

KPMG verified completeness, existence and accuracy of funding by performing the following procedures:  

− KPMG obtained an understanding of the activities over the processing of revenues.  We did not note any changes in the revenue recognition policies throughout the audit 
process. 

− KPMG has completed external confirmations for third-party funding where possible. 

− Substantively tested the other revenue streams by verifying cash receipts. 

− KPMG ensured revenue is recorded in the appropriate period through review of year-end cut-off, tested through revenue accruals as at year-end. 

− KPMG has assessed related accruals and claw-backs as part of the recognition assessment of revenue. 

− KPMG reviewed funding letters / supporting agreements to ensure appropriate revenue recognition.  

As a result of our audit procedures, no issues or audit misstatements were identified. 

PCOP Revenues 
− The Hospital is party to a Post Construction Operating Plan (“PCOP”) with the MOH as pertains to the expanded service levels at the Hospital with the construction of the 

new wing.  

− We worked with management to understand the impacts of PCOP funding. 

− We obtained the Ministry correspondence including funding letters to understand the conditions in place around recognition of PCOP funding. 

− During the year, the Hospital received $16.9 million in funding, of which $6.2 million was recognized in income and $10.8 million is recorded as deferred grants at year-
end. 

− KPMG re-performed the calculations provided by management, and noted no issues. 

− PCOP Funding can be subject to adjustment through the reconciliation process conducted by the Ministry of Health. 

As a result of our audit procedures, no issues or audit misstatements were identified. 
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QBP Revenues 

 

− We confirmed the cash flows received by the Hospital with the MOH and Ontario Health (formerly Cancer Care Ontario) reconciled to the amount of revenue recorded 
during the year.  

− We reviewed correspondence for a selection of funding agreements to ensure appropriate revenue recognition criteria has been applied. 

− We selected a sample of volume-based funding programs for testing.  We reviewed the process and controls in place to ensure data is being captured accurately. We 
also verified the accuracy of procedure coding and tracking. 

− As part of the COVID-19 broad-based funding reconciliation, the Hospital recognized approximately $2,030,000 in unearned QBP volume-based revenues as was 
permitted by the MOH. 

As a result of our audit procedures, no issues or audit misstatements were identified. 
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Audit risks and results 
Other area of focus Why are we focusing here? 

Accrued Liabilities and Other 
Ministry Payables 

Many of the year-end accruals are subject to estimation uncertainty at the cut-off date for posting to the general ledger.  

Additionally, certain external funding agreements could result in year-end claw backs based on the amount and eligibility of 
expenditures incurred by the Hospital. 

Our Response & Significant Findings 

The Hospital receives funding from the MOH for a number of its programs contingent on certain requirements being met, such as the completion of a specific number of 
procedures in the fiscal year. If the requirements of funding are not met, a portion of the funding may be payable to the MOH. 

The following accruals have been recorded in the financial statements: 

- Accounts payable and accruals include $13.9 million related to payroll amounts (2020 - $11.5 million), and $11.3 million of non-payroll related amounts (2020 - 
$13.4 million). 

- Of the payroll-related accruals, $3.5 million (2020 - $3.3 million) relates to the pay equity accruals set up related to prior years. 

- $6.4 million (2020 - $6.4 million) of accounts payable relating to trade payables,  

• Where $3.5 million pertains to CRP payables (2020 - $3.5 million), with the large decrease pertaining to payment for interim completion. 

- $20.3 million (2020 - $7.8 million) of deferred grants with the largest increases pertaining to $10.8 million of PCOP funding and $1.7 million donation to cover 
COVID-19 capital and operating expenses.  

- $7.4 million (2020 - $7.1 million) of year-end and general operating accruals 

Included in the Due to MOH balance are the following: 

- $2.1 million (2020 - $0.83 million) for potential claw back of the MOH funding for potential volume shortfalls and unspent funds. KPMG notes that all amounts that 
pertain to claw backs established in fiscal 18-19 have remained unchanged and as the prior year balances have not yet settled. 

- $0.19 million (2020 - $.19 million) for potential claw backs related to various LHIN/MOH projects. 

• KPMG notes that some of these claw backs are many years old (from 2013 – 2016) which total $138,000. Management should continue to evaluate whether 
these will be recovered by the LHIN/MOH.  

The accruals are considered necessary by management. The accounting treatment of these accruals are consistent with our experience with other hospitals. 
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Accrued Liabilities – Breakdown (millions)  
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Audit risks and results 
Other area of focus Why are we focusing here? 

Capital projects and deferred 
capital contributions 

To assess the existence and accuracy of deferred capital contributions. 

The Hospital is involved with a number of capital projects with corresponding funding agreements that carry restrictions on use of the 
funds. 

Our Response & Significant Findings 

− KPMG selected a sample of current year capital asset and deferred capital contribution additions.  We agreed amounts back to source documentation to determine the 
appropriate recognition. 

− A sample of asset depreciation was recalculated to ensure compliance with MOH mandated rates and no issues were identified. 

− We performed a review of capital assets to assess if there are any impairments.  No items were considered impaired. 

− We tested the amortization of deferred capital contributions.  Current year revenue recognized from deferred contributions was consistent with the related amortization 
expense recognized. 

− We have reviewed the financial statement presentation and disclosure of capital assets, deferred contributions and investment in capital assets. 

− As a result of our audit procedures, no issues or audit misstatements were identified. 
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Audit risks and results 
 

Other area of focus Why are we focusing here? 

Payroll expenses and 
employee related accruals 

Payroll and related costs are significant for the Hospital. 

Ensure accruals meet the definition of a liability (PS 1000 – “Financial Statement Concepts”) and any post-employment benefits are 
recorded in accordance with PS 3255 – “Post-employment benefits, compensated absences and termination benefits. 

Our Response & Significant Findings 

Salaries and Benefits Expenses 

− KPMG has test controls around new hires and terminations we well as the review of exception reports by management. 

− An expectation for current year wages and benefits was determined utilizing changes in headcount, step increases and changes in accruals. No issues were noted. 

− As a result of our audit procedures, no issues or audit misstatements were identified. 

Pay Equity Accruals 

− Various employee groups have initiated complaints under pay equity legislation which may result in retroactive financial compensation. Accruals have been setup in 
relation to the potential liability for ONA and OPSEU pay equity settlements of $2.8 million (2020 - $2.5 million) and $673,000 (2020 - $623,000) respectively. 

− These accruals are established based on current information and are management’s best estimates based on assumptions that reflect the most probable set of 
conditions and planned course of action. Management’s approach is consistent with the prior years.  

− While negotiations are on-going, the timing and resolution of the pay equity issue with ONA and OPSEU is unknown as of the date of this report. KPMG recalculated the 
accruals and reviewed Management’s assumptions.   

− We have reviewed the pay equity legislation, related correspondence and discussed the matter with Management.  We have also considered the accounting treatment 
provided by other hospitals and healthcare organizations.  

Retroactive Settlement 

− During the year the, CMH reached a settlement for SEIU service members retro to October 1, 2017. KPMG also obtained the Collective Agreement and also reviewed 
the summary pay register and noted the total gross payment for the settlement was approximately $336,000.  KPMG compared this to the Hospital’s accrual of 
$223,000 which was management’s best estimate of the settlement liability.  The difference was not significant. 

As a result of our audit procedures, no issues or audit misstatements were identified. 
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Employee Future Benefits 

− Reliance is placed on the actuarial valuation performed by Morneau Shepell in determining the accrued post-employment benefit liability at the end of each fiscal year. A 
full actuarial valuation is performed every 3 years with the last full valuation was performed as of April 1, 2020, with extrapolation to March 31, 2021. 

- KPMG performed testing over the employee data provided to the Morneau Shepell to ensure that it is complete and accurate. 

- The Ministry has suggested a discount rate of 3.21% to be used for all hospitals with a March 31, 2021 year end, which is the rate that has been used in the March 31, 
2021 extrapolation. 

− The accrued benefit obligation at March 31, 2021 is $3.42 million (2020 - $2.61 million), compared to the accrued benefit liability of $4.03 million (2020 - $3.95 million) 
recorded on the financial statements.  The difference between the accrued benefit obligation and the liability is an unamortized actuarial gain.   

− Based on our review of the assumptions and the actuarial report, the employee future benefit liability is properly accrued and disclosed in the notes to the financial 
statements. We have also ensured all related disclosures under the public sector accounting standards have been adequately presented in the financial statements. 

− No indicators of management bias or misstatements were noted. 
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Other matters 
We have highlighted the following that we would like to bring to your attention: 

 

Matter KPMG comment 

Pandemic-related 
impacts   

We have undertaken certain audit procedures intended to address potential financial reporting matters arising from the current pandemic. 

The Hospital’s financial statements reflect a total of $15.5 million in MOH funding related to COVID-19 impacts, which includes 
reimbursement of incremental costs of $10.5 million, funding to offset non-ministry revenue losses of $3 million and the redirection of funding 
from other programs to offset budgetary pressures of $2 million, with a further $1.4 million in funding for capital expenditures.  

As noted earlier in our Audit Findings Report, the MOH has provided guidance with respect funding programs associated with the ongoing 
pandemic, including eligibility criteria for incremental expenses, the determination of funding for lost revenue, the ability of the Hospital to 
transfer unused funding from certain programs (e.g. QBP, Wait times, PCOP, CCO, etc.) to budgetary pressures (e.g. other costs and 
revenue losses not funded through other programs) and working capital.  In addition to this guidance, KPMG has participated in consultations 
with the MOH and Office of the Auditor General to discuss audit-related issues associated with COVID-19 and working capital funding 
programs.  Notwithstanding the availability of this guidance, however, the criteria associated with COVID-19 funding continues to evolve and 
as such, there is a degree of measurement uncertain with respect to the level of revenue to be received by the Hospital.  For example, 
funding letters issued by the MOH indicate that funding for COVID-19 related revenue losses and working capital funding will be up to a 
certain amount, with the final amount of revenue subject to review and reconciliation by the MOH.  The MOH has also indicated the potential 
for additional reductions in funding based on the reported surplus of the Hospital. 

The Hospital has recognized $15.5 million in COVID-19 related funding recognized in the Statement of Operations.  To the extent that the 
final amount of revenue differs from this amount due to changes in funding criteria or the other adjustments made by the MOH upon final 
settlement, these adjustments will constitute a change in management estimate and will be reflected in the Hospital’s financial statement in 
the year of settlement.  Accordingly, the Audit Committee should be aware of the extent of measurement uncertainty inherent in the 
Hospital’s financial statements, the potential for additional adjustments during the subsequent fiscal year and the requirement for 
these adjustments to be recorded in the year of settlement as opposed to retroactive application.   
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Technology in the audit 
As previously communicated in our Audit Planning Report, we have utilized technology to enhance the quality and effectiveness of the audit. 
 

 

Areas of the audit where Technology and D&A routines were used 

Tool Our results and insights 

KPMG Clara Client 
Collaboration 

We have introduced the KPMG Clara Client Collaboration site to bring the best of KPMG to you. The site allows teams to work smarter, 
connect and collaborate, share insights and updates, and provide advanced solutions to communication. The new tool allowed us to track 
the progress and completion of audit work and facilitate a safer and more efficient transfer of documents by both teams. 

Journal Entry Analysis We utilized application software (IDEA) to evaluate the completeness of the journal entry population through a roll-forward of 100% of the 
accounts. Further, we utilized computer-assisted audit techniques (CAATs) to select journal entries for further testing. 

As part of our journal entry testing, we ran various routines over unique account combinations to address the various audit risks discussed 
earlier. Based on our review of the entries and discussion with management, we noted that the entries were appropriately recorded and 
reflected the underlying events and transactions. 
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Significant accounting policies and practices 
 

Initial selections 

There were no new significant accounting policies and practices selected and applied during the period. 

 
Changes 

There have been no changes to significant accounting policies and practices and the impact on the financial statements during the year. 

 Future Implementation 

- Section PS 3280, Asset Retirement Obligations is effective for fiscal years beginning on April 1, 2022, (fiscal year ending March 31, 2023) 

- Management will perform an assessment of the impact of the new accounting standard on the financial statements.  
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Financial statement presentation and disclosure 
Misstatements, including omissions, if any, related to financial statement presentation and disclosure items are in the management representation letter. 

We also highlight the following: 

 

Form, arrangement, and 
content of the financial 
statements 

Adequate 

The current year financial statements reflect the following changes: 

– Note 15 provides additional disclosure relating to MOH funding for COVID-19 impacts and the extent of measurement uncertainty 
associated with this revenue  

– Note 16 provides an overview of COVID-19 impacts on the Hospital and the potential for future financial impacts 

Significant qualitative 
aspects of financial 
statement presentation 
and disclosure 

No significant qualitative aspects noted.  

The Hospital has included disclosures over the nature and amount of COVID-19 pandemic funding received during the year. 
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Uncorrected differences 
Differences and adjustments include disclosure and presentation differences and adjustments. 

Professional standards require that we request of management and the Audit Committee that all identified differences be corrected. We have already made 
this request of management. 

Uncorrected differences 
Based on both qualitative and quantitative considerations, management have decided not to correct certain differences and represented to us that the differences —individually 
and in the aggregate—are, in their judgment, not material to the financial statements. This management representation is included in the management representation letter. 

We concur with management’s representation that the differences are not material to the financial statements. Accordingly, the differences have no effect on our auditors’ report 

As at and year ended March 31, 2021 Income effect Financial position 

Description of differences greater than $110,000 
individually (Decrease) Increase 

Assets  
(Decrease) Increase 

Liabilities 
(Decrease) Increase 

Net Assets 
(Decrease) Increase 

Adjustment to record a capital asset addition and the related 
accounts payable for a March 2021 purchase not recorded at 
year end. 

– $554,000 $554,000 – 

Total differences – $554,000 $554,000 – 

 

Corrected adjustments 
We did not identify any adjustments that were communicated to management and subsequently corrected in the financial statements.  
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Appendix 1: Other Required Communications 
Auditors’ Report Representations of management 

The conclusion of our audit is set out in our draft auditors’ report attached to the 
draft financial statements. 

A copy of the management representation letter is attached.  (Appendix 2)  

Annual independence letter  Audit Quality in Canada 

We have attached our annual independence letter dates as of the date of this 
report. (Appendix 3) 

The reports available through the following links were published by the Canadian 
Public Accountability Board to inform audit committees and other stakeholders 
about the results of quality inspections conducted over the past year: 

• CPAB Audit Quality Insights Report: 2020 Interim Inspection Results 
• CPAB Audit Quality Insights Report: 2019 Annual Inspections Results 
Visit our Audit Quality Resources page for more information including access to our 
Transparency report 

 

 

  

https://www.cpab-ccrc.ca/docs/default-source/inspections-reports/2020-interim-inspections-report-en.pdf?sfvrsn=f5ae8854_18
https://www.cpab-ccrc.ca/docs/default-source/inspections-reports/2020-interim-inspections-report-en.pdf?sfvrsn=f5ae8854_18
https://cpab-ccrc.ca/docs/default-source/inspections-reports/2019-annual-inspections-results-en.pdf
https://home.kpmg.com/ca/en/home/services/audit/audit-quality-resources.html
https://home.kpmg/content/dam/kpmg/ca/pdf/2020/12/2020-audit-quality-and-transparency-report.pdf
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Appendix 2: Management Representation Letter 
KPMG LLP 
115 King Street South, 2nd Floor 
Waterloo, ON  
N2J 5A3 

May 26, 2021 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

We are writing at your request to confirm our understanding that your audit was for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the financial statements 
(hereinafter referred to as “financial statements”) of Cambridge Memorial Hospital (“the Entity”) as at and for the period ended March 31, 2021. 

General: 

We confirm that the representations we make in this letter are in accordance with the definitions as set out in Attachment I to this letter. 

We also confirm that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, having made such inquiries as we considered necessary for the purpose of appropriately 
informing ourselves: 

Responsibilities: 

1) We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the engagement letter dated January 18, 2021, including for: 

a) the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements and believe that these financial statements have been prepared and present fairly 
in accordance with the relevant financial reporting framework. 

b) providing you with all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of the financial statements (“relevant information”), such 
as financial records, documentation and other matters, including: 

— the names of all related parties and information regarding all relationships and transactions with related parties;   

— the complete minutes of meetings, or summaries of actions of recent meetings for which minutes have not yet been prepared, of shareholders, 
board of directors and committees of the board of directors that may affect the financial statements. All significant actions are included in such 
summaries. 

c) providing you with unrestricted access to such relevant information. 

d) providing you with complete responses to all enquiries made by you during the engagement. 

e) providing you with additional information that you may request from us for the purpose of the engagement. 
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f) providing you with unrestricted access to persons within the Entity from whom you determined it necessary to obtain audit evidence. 

g) such internal control as we determined is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. We also acknowledge and understand that we are responsible for the design, implementation and maintenance of 
internal control to prevent and detect fraud. 

h) ensuring that all transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the financial statements. 

i) ensuring that internal auditors providing direct assistance to you, if any, were instructed to follow your instructions and that we, and others within 
the entity, did not intervene in the work the internal auditors performed for you. 

Internal control over financial reporting: 

2) We have communicated to you all deficiencies in the design and implementation or maintenance of internal control over financial reporting of which we 
are aware. 

Fraud & non-compliance with laws and regulations: 

3) We have disclosed to you: 

a) the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud. 

b) all information in relation to fraud or suspected fraud that we are aware of that involves:  

— management; 

— employees who have significant roles in internal control over financial reporting; or  

— others 

where such fraud or suspected fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

c) all information in relation to allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting the financial statements, communicated by employees, former 
employees, analysts, regulators, or others. 

d) all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance with laws and regulations, including all aspects of contractual agreements, 
whose effects should be considered when preparing financial statements. 

e) all known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects should be considered when preparing the financial statements. 

Subsequent events: 

4) All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which the relevant financial reporting framework requires adjustment or disclosure 
in the financial statements have been adjusted or disclosed. 

Related parties: 

5) We have disclosed to you the identity of the Entity’s related parties. 

6) We have disclosed to you all the related party relationships and transactions/balances of which we are aware. 
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7) All related party relationships and transactions/balances have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in accordance with the relevant financial 
reporting framework. 

Estimates: 

8) Measurement methods and significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including those measured at fair value, are 
reasonable. 

Going concern: 

9) We have provided you with all information relevant to the use of the going concern assumption in the financial statements. 

10) We confirm that we are not aware of material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Entity’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. 

Non-SEC registrants or non-reporting issuers: 

11) We confirm that the Entity is not a Canadian reporting issuer (as defined under any applicable Canadian securities act) and is not a United States 
Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) Issuer (as defined by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002).  

Inventories: 

12) Inventories have been appropriately measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. 

13) We have no plans or intentions that will result in any excess or obsolete inventory. 

14) Provision, when material, has been made for losses to be sustained as a result of the reduction of excess, damaged, unusable or obsolete inventories 
to their estimated net realizable value. 

Revenues and Receivables: 

15) We have reduced the carrying value of receivables to recognize any impairment loss.  

16) Receivables reported in the financial statements represent valid claims against patients and other debtors for sales or other charges arising on or 
before the balance sheet date. 

Management’s Use of Specialists: 

17) We agree with the findings of Morneau Shepell as management’s specialist in evaluating the accounting and disclosures for the Entity’s employee 
future benefits. We did not give or cause any instructions to be given to specialists with respect to the values or amounts derived in an attempt to bias 
their work, and we are not otherwise aware of any matters that have had an impact on the independence or objectivity of the specialists. 

Employee Future Benefits: 

18) The employee future benefits costs, assets and obligation, if any, have been determined, accounted for and disclosed in accordance with the financial 
reporting framework. 

19) There are no arrangements (contractual or otherwise) by which programs have been established to provide employee future benefits. 

20) All arrangements (contractual or otherwise) by which programs have been established to provide employee benefits, which include post-employment 
benefits, and that are funded or unfunded  have been disclosed to you and included in the determination of employee benefit costs and obligations. 
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21) All plan amendments, curtailments and settlements have been identified and properly accounted for under the financial reporting framework. 

22) The set of actuarial assumptions for each plan is individually consistent. 

23) We have provided you with all information regarding significant assumptions applied in measuring fair value of plan assets. 

24) The assumptions included in the actuarial valuation are those that management instructed Morneau Shepell to use in computing amounts to be used 
by the Entity in determining employee benefit costs and obligations and in making required disclosures in the above-named financial statements, in 
accordance with the relevant financial reporting framework. 

25) In arriving at these assumptions, management has obtained the advice of Morneau Shepell, but has retained the final responsibility for them. 

26) The source data and plan provisions provided to the actuary for preparation of the actuarial valuation are accurate and complete. 

27) All changes to plan provisions or events occurring subsequent to the date of the actuarial valuation and up to the date of this letter have been 
considered in the determination of pension costs and obligations and as such have been communicated to you as well as to the actuary.  

28) The extrapolations are accurate and properly reflect the effects of changes and events that occurred subsequent to the most recent valuation and that 
had a material effect on the extrapolation. 

29) All material events and changes to the plan subsequent to the most recent actuarial valuation have been properly reflected in the extrapolation. 

Assets and Liabilities – General: 

30) We have no knowledge of material unrecorded assets or liabilities or contingent assets or liabilities that have not been disclosed to you. 

31) We have no knowledge of shortages that have been discovered and not disclosed to you (such as shortages in inventory, cash, negotiable 
instruments, etc.). 

32) We have no knowledge of arrangements with financial institutions involving restrictions on cash balances and lines of credit or similar arrangements 
not disclosed to you. 

33) We have no knowledge of side agreements (contractual or otherwise) with any parties that have not been disclosed to you. 

COVID-19 expenditure (capital and operating): 

34) The Entity has met the conditions to recognize COVID-19 funding for the reimburse of eligible COVID-19 operating and capital expenditures in the 
financial statements. 

Misstatements:  

35) The effects of the uncorrected misstatements described in Attachment II are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial 
statements as a whole. 
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Yours very truly, 

_______________________________________ 
Patrick Gaskin, President and Chief Executive Officer 

_______________________________________ 
Trevor Clark, VP Finance and Corporate Services and CFO 

cc: Audit Committee
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Attachment I – Definitions 
Materiality 

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material. Misstatements, including omissions, are considered to be 
material if they, individually or in the aggregate, could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial 
statements. Judgments about materiality are made in light of surrounding circumstances, and are affected by the size or nature of a misstatement, or a 
combination of both. 

Fraud & error 

Fraudulent financial reporting involves intentional misstatements including omissions of amounts or disclosures in financial statements to deceive financial 
statement users. 

Misappropriation of assets involves the theft of an entity’s assets. It is often accompanied by false or misleading records or documents in order to conceal the 
fact that the assets are missing or have been pledged without proper authorization. 
An error is an unintentional misstatement in financial statements, including the omission of an amount or a disclosure. 
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Attachment II – Summary of Audit Misstatements Schedule 
 

Uncorrected Misstatements 
 

As at and year ended March 31, 2021 Income 
effect 

Financial position 

Description of differences greater than 
$110,000 individually 

(Decrease) 
Increase 

Assets  
(Decrease) 
Increase 

Liabilities 
(Decrease) 
Increase 

Net Assets 
(Decrease) 
Increase 

Adjustment to record a capital asset addition 
and the related accounts payable for a March 
2021 purchase not recorded at year end. 

– $554,000 $554,000 – 

Total differences – $554,000 $554,000 – 
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Appendix 3: Independence Letter 
 

 

 
KPMG LLP 
115 King Street South, 2nd Floor 
Waterloo ON N2J 5A3 
Tel 519-747-8800 
Fax 519-747-8830 
 
 
Audit Committee  
Cambridge Memorial Hospital 
700 Coronation Blvd. 
Cambridge, ON  N1R 3G2 
 

May 17, 2021 

Ladies and Gentlemen 

We have been engaged to express an opinion on the financial statements of Cambridge Memorial Hospital (the “Entity”) as at and for the year ended March 
31, 2021. 

Professional standards specify that we communicate to you in writing all relationships between the Entity and our firm that, in our professional judgment, may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence. 

In determining which relationships to report, we consider relevant rules and related interpretations prescribed by the relevant professional bodies and any 
applicable legislation or regulation, covering such matters as: 

a) provision of services in addition to the audit engagement 

b) other relationships such as: 

- holding a financial interest, either directly or indirectly, in a client 

- holding a position, either directly or indirectly, that gives the right or responsibility to exert significant influence over the financial or accounting policies 
of a client 

- personal or business relationships of immediate family, close relatives, partners or retired partners, either directly or indirectly, with a client 
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- economic dependence on a client 

PROVISION OF SERVICES 
Except for pre-approved audit services, there are no other professional fees paid or payable to our firm for rendered by us to the Entity from April 1, 2020, up 
to the date of this letter. 

Professional standards require that we communicate the related safeguards that have been applied to eliminate identified threats to independence or to 
reduce them to an acceptable level. We have not provided any prohibited services. We have applied the following safeguards regarding threats to 
independence created by the services listed above: 

- We instituted policies and procedures to prohibit us from making management decisions or assuming responsibility for such decisions. 

- We obtained pre-approval of non-audit services and during this pre-approval process we discussed the nature of the engagement and other 
independence issues related to the services. 

- We obtained management’s acknowledgement of responsibility for the results of the work performed by us regarding non-audit services and we have 
not made any management decisions or assumed responsibility for such decisions. 

OTHER RELATIONSHIPS 
We are not aware of any other relationships between our firm and the Entity that, in our professional judgement, may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence. 

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE 
We confirm that, as of the date of this letter, we are independent of the Entity in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
financial statements in Canada. 

OTHER MATTERS 
This letter is confidential and intended solely for use by those charged with governance in carrying out and discharging their responsibilities and should not be 
used for any other purposes. 

KPMG shall have no responsibility for loss or damages or claims, if any, to or by any third party as this letter has not been prepared for, and is not intended for, 
and should not be used by, any third party or for any other purpose. 

Yours very truly, 

 
Licensed Public Accountants 
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Appendix 4: Audit and Assurance Insights 
Our latest thinking on the issues that matter most to audit committees, Boards and Management. 
 

Featured insight Summary Reference 

Audit & Assurance Insights Curated thought leadership, research and insights from subject matter experts across KPMG in Canada. Learn more  

The business implications of 
coronavirus (COVID 19) 

Resources to help you understand your exposure to COVID-19, and more importantly, position your 
business to be resilient in the face of this and the next global threat. Learn more  

Financial reporting and audit considerations: The impact of COVID-19 on financial reporting and audit 
processes. Learn more  

KPMG Global IFRS Institute - COVID-19 financial reporting resource center. Learn more  

Accelerate 2020 Perspective on the key issues driving the audit committee agenda. Learn more  

IFRS Breaking News A monthly Canadian newsletter that provides the latest insights on international financial reporting 
standards and IASB activities.  

Learn more 

Momentum 
A quarterly Canadian newsletter which provides a snapshot of KPMG's latest thought leadership, audit 
and assurance insights and information on upcoming and past audit events – keeping management and 
board members abreast on current issues and emerging challenges within audit. 

Sign-up now  

Current Developments 
Series of quarterly publications for Canadian businesses including Spotlight on IFRS, Canadian 
Securities & Auditing Matters and US Outlook reports. Learn more  

Board Leadership Centre Leading insights to help board members maximize boardroom opportunities. Learn more  

https://home.kpmg/ca/en/home/insights/2019/05/audit-assurance-insights.html
https://home.kpmg/ca/en/home/insights/2020/03/the-business-implications-of-coronavirus.html
https://home.kpmg/ca/en/home/insights/2020/03/financial-reporting-and-audit-considerations.html
https://home.kpmg/xx/en/home/insights/2020/03/covid-19-financial-reporting-resource-centre.html
https://home.kpmg/ca/en/home/insights/2020/11/new-world-new-reality.html
https://home.kpmg/ca/en/home/insights/2010/03/international-financial-reporting-standards-ifrs.html
http://pages.kpmgemail.com/page.aspx?QS=2e4c31a3756cb940af903f205e1f1e041bdb8334b58bad706ad9d7762eb124d4
https://home.kpmg/ca/en/home/insights/2020/11/current-developments.html
https://home.kpmg/ca/en/home/misc/board-leadership.html
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Appendix 5: Operational Excellence 
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Hospitals share the same goal: to deliver services to its patients in the best possible manner. As hospital 

budget challenges grow year after year, hospitals face a host of unavoidable pressures.  

Accordingly, hospital leadership seeks to optimize patient services through continuous improvement and efficiency initiatives to 

maintain current costs while improving service levels to patients.  

Beyond the fiscal challenges facing hospitals, hospitals also need to manage the following: 

Administrative 

 Optimizing non-clinical back office efficiency in processes in finance and administrative teams, including decreasing costs, 

process steps, human hours; 

 Supporting process improvements as part of digital transformation; 

 Capacity constraints of finance and administrative teams; 

 Managing heightened IT and Cyber risk as a result of remote working; 

Inventory Management 

 Increase in stockpiling of inventory to accommodate COVID-19 needs; 

 Optimizing inventory losses and obsolescence to decrease the financial impact of wastage; 

Funding Maximization 

 Funding maximization/optimization and the determination if hospitals are using all funding appropriately as well as 

determining how to best use additional funding to obtain the best outcomes; 

 Managing changes in Foundation and charity grants; and 

 Considering alternate innovative virtual fundraising events and sales platforms to continue seeking alternative funding and 

donations. 

Lean thinking is the belief that there is a simpler, better way through a continuous drive to identify and eliminate waste, 

inefficiencies, and errors in our day-to-day work.  It is about making our work environments efficient and effective so we can 

provide higher quality of services to our customers or stakeholders. A quality improvement mindset improves safety, quality, 

costs, efficiencies, and service delivery helping create time for quality improvement to be part of everyday routine activity. 

 

The sustainable organization 

Transforming an organization to operate in a culture of continuous improvement does not happen overnight. This transformation 

will require teams to change the way they do business and to do this, they will need to be supported in different ways than 

they are today. Leadership skills developed through the training programs delivered by KPMG include helping managers raise 

the capability of their teams to focus on process: stabilize it, standardize it, and innovatively improve it by exposing problems 

and eliminating them. The objective is to develop leaders who align and engage the organization around the delivery of core 

business goals, engage their teams to reveal and solve problems, ensure the standards for the way work is done are in place 

and in use, and ensure continuous improvement is part of their team’s daily work. 

Operational excellence in 
back office healthcare  
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When leaders apply their learnings from our continuous improvement training programs it can fundamentally change how an 

organization operates and positions the organizations to begin functioning at a world class level, as illustrated in “The 

Sustainable Organization” diagram on the right below: 

 

 

KPMG uses Lean Six Sigma methodology to support our clients in their journey to continuous improvement.  An organization 

can begin their journey at any one of these steps and KPMG will help you identify where you are. 

 

 
It is imperative to develop an approach that builds a solid foundational knowledge of continuous improvement across 

departments, leverages the capabilities of emerging leaders by training them in facilitating their own continuous improvement 

training programs, then provides a support system for staff upon completion of the training to sustain the organization’s 

continuous improvement culture. When implemented together, these phases build capacity for Lean thinking at all levels and 

will take the hospital a big step towards becoming a beacon in Lean Management within the Canadian public sector. 
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Are you maximizing your outputs from your systems? 

The COVID-19 pandemic has forced many hospitals to embrace new methods of work.  Many previously paper-based 

processes have now been modernized as a result of a predominantly virtual work environment since March 2020.  It should be 

noted that there is still work to be done to evaluate these processes and determine if they are still appropriate, if the they add 

value, and if they can be streamlined to create additional efficiency and capacity for staff. 

Organizational design for performance 

The evolution of service provision required to meet the needs of the hospitals today, as well as future growth, will require a 

proactive approach to organizational design.  To optimize strategic capabilities and effective operations of the hospital, KPMG’s 

ODP methodology applies Lean principles and tools to build the infrastructure to support this growth and embed Lean within 

your methodologies and daily work; resulting in a culture of performance and innovation, that ensures that the hospital delivers 

maximum value for patients in the most efficient manner possible. 

 

 

We are Canada’s leading hospitals advisory firm with a proven record of training Lean methodology across the public sector. 

Our experience serving hospitals and implementing Lean methodology is unparalleled. We have a team of partners and 

professionals dedicated to providing advisory services to hospitals across Canada.  

Contact us 
Dale Schattenkirk  
Partner, Leader Lean Services  
416-777-3876 
dschattenkirk@kpmg.ca 

Rob Clayton 
Partner, Audit 
613-212-3601 
rclayton@kpmg.ca 
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Appendix 6: Internal Auditing for Hospitals 

 



Internal Auditing
for Hospitals
May 2021



2© 2021 KPMG LLP, an Ontario limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG global organization of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Limited, a private English 
company limited by guarantee. All rights reserved. The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

New demands from the audit committee, top  
management, and other stakeholders are requiring IA 
departments to extend their scope of responsibility 
beyond compliance-oriented concerns. 

More prevalent than ever, and now accelerated by the 
pandemic and need to adapt to a virtual workforce, the 
rapid adoption of technology, evolving regulatory 
requirements and changes in service delivery models, IA 
functions need to evolve to keep pace with organizations 
and to continue to provide insights that deliver value and 
protect the organization through this journey. 

Changing stakeholder expectations and a new view of 
risk  management are prompting an important shift in the 
role of internal audit (IA) in many organizations. 

With this dynamic time, IA has an opportunity to 
embrace a fundamental shift from value preservation 
to value creation. 

Five (5) themes to enable this shift are noted on the 
right.

Re-imagining 
Internal Audit

LO
R

EM

Themes

Value 
Creation

Enabling  
tools and  

technologies

Resources

Cultivating  
the right  

team

Trends and  
leading  

practices

− The integration of technology-enabled data and  analytics, as well as continuous auditing tools 
and  techniques into the risk assessment, planning, scoping, execution and reporting phases of 
an Internal Audit methodology provides greater insights and value into processes, and helps 
mitigate risks.

− With the imperative to create value in mind, the decisions by 
internal audit leadership will establish the framework for future  
successes of the internal audit function.

− The right IA approach begins with a strategy to 
deliver value while mitigating risk across your 
organization.

− It is crucial to identify the right roles, motivations, and drivers to 
cultivate the right team to deliver results.

− Achieve its full potential with KPMG’s specialist resources
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Top trends and how internal audit can help

Assess the design of the processes for providing tele-
health or medical consultations virtually and the related 
recording, billing and security of these activities. 

Virtual Care

Review and assess the design of the policies and 
procedures in place to manage critical inventory risks, 
such as inventory tracking, replenishment, recording 
and logistics. Identify process or internal control 
improvement opportunities with managing critical supply 
inventory such as, COVID test kits and medical devices, 
personal protective equipment etc.

Inventory Management

Review the flexible work policies, enforcement practices 
and arrangements made with employees working 
remotely.  Assess internal controls over time and 
attendance, payroll, remote access, productivity and 
capacity needs. 

Remote Work

Surgical Backlog Management

Review the mechanisms in place for the identification, 
prioritization and deployment of vaccine distribution 
clinics/sites.  Review and assess internal controls and 
protocols for maintaining physical security of vaccines 
and safety of staff/volunteers.

Vaccine Distribution

Review and assess strategies, plans and controls in 
place to prevent, detect and respond to Cyber threats. 
Internal audits in this area can be tailored and 
customized to help prepare or maintain cyber risk 
management agenda. Reviews provide greater visibility 
and understanding of changing risks.

Cyber Readiness

Review social media policy and determine compliance 
by sample testing a number of the social media 
accounts. In doing so determine whether behaviours 
and usage of social media is in line with values.

Social Media Governance

Assess the policies and processes in place across 
various stages of a project lifecycle including: Scoping 
and costing, Schedule, Risk Procurement / Contract, 
Project Change, Communication (includes reporting), 
Quality, Safety, Document / Records Management, 
Reviews, Lessons Learned and Handover.

Infrastructure / Capital Projects

Assess the strategy and plan in place for inclusion and 
diversity amongst staff, the governance of them and the 
measures in place to measure achievement of the 
goals. Assess whether Training and awareness 
programs are offered to staff and faculty to provide 
understanding of roles and responsibilities pertaining to 
EDI and material is updated on a regular basis.

Equity, Inclusion and Diversity

Organizational Talent Risk Assessment

Assess framework and/or processes for addressing 
surgical backlogs and related risk (including patient 
health, reputation, burnout, supply chain etc.).

Evaluate processes for reporting and forecasting need 
for surgical and medical supplies. 

Assess talent / people risks and trends using employee 
surveys. Identify units/teams with higher risks to the 
employee experience. 

Once trends/risks are identified as a baseline, IA can 
review strategies to determine if they effectively reduce 
turnover and costs associated with sick days, extended 
leaves, failed return to work. 
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Let’s discuss how our firm’s expertise 
in the area of internal auditing, 
combined with our knowledge of 
hospitals and health care 
organizations, can support your audit 
committee.

Suk Bedi, CPA, CIA, CRMA, CIPM
Senior Director, Governance, Risk & 
Compliance Services

T: 519-747-8206 
M: 519-721-4111
sbedi@kpmg.ca

Contact us

mailto:sbedi@kpmg.ca
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Date:   June 30, 2021   
Issue:  Director Terms 
Prepared for: Governance Committee   
Purpose:              ☐  Approval  ☐  Discussion   ☒  Information ☐  Seeking Direction 
Prepared by: Cheryl Vandervalk  
Approved by:   Patrick Gaskin 
   
Attachments/Related Documents:  none 
 
Below are the terms of directors as of the upcoming annual meeting in June 2021.   
 
Summary: 

• Nicola Melchers will be recommended for a 3-year term ending at the annual meeting in 2024 
• Denise Smith will be recommended for a 1-year term ending at the annual meeting in 2024 
• David Pyper will be recommended for a 2-year term ending at the annual meeting in 2023 
• Jody Stecho will be recommended for a 3-year term ending at the annual meeting in 2024 
• Diane Wilkinson was appointed on September 30, 2020 as per the Bylaw #1 Article 4.5 (a) If a 

vacancy occurs for any reason among the elected Directors, such vacancy may be filled by an 
eligible person elected by the Board to serve until the next annual meeting. She fulfilled Bill 
Deley’s appointment until the 2021 annual meeting at which point she will be appointed to a 2-
year term to complete the balance of Bill’s term. It is to be noted also that Article 4.5 (b) states 
“Service on the Board to fill such an unexpired term shall not be considered a term for the 
purpose of section 4.4.”  meaning this does not constitute the 9-year term that she could serve. 

• Margaret McKinnon will be recommended for a 3-year term ending at the annual meeting in 
2024 

• Julia Goyal will be recommended for a 1-year term ending at the annual meeting in 2022 
 

 
Year 
First  
Elected 

Name  Remaining 
Term of Office 
(as of 2021 Ann. Mtg.) 
 

Current 
Term 
Ends 

9 year 
max 

2016 Nicola Melchers 3 years 2021 2025 
2019 Jody Stecho 3 years 2021 2028 
2020 
2021 

Diane Wilkinson 
Margaret McKinnon 

3 years 
3 years 

2021 
2022 

2030 
2030 

2015 Elaine Habicher 2 years 2023 2024 
2014 David Pyper 2 years 2021 2023 
2019 Sara Alvarado 2 years 2023 2028 
2021 Julia Goyal 2 years 2023 2030 
2016 Tim Edworthy 1 year 2022 2025 
2016 Tom Dean 1 year 2022 2025 
2019 Lynn Woeller 1 year 2022 2028 
2015 Denise Smith 1 year 2021 2024 

 

 

BRIEFING NOTE  
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New Board Members 2021

June 30, 2021



New Board Member – Margaret McKinnon
Dr. Margaret McKinnon serves as the Homewood Chair in Mental Health 
and Trauma and as Full Professor (effective July 1, 2021) and Associate Chair, 
Research in the Department of Psychiatry and Behavioural Neurosciences at 
McMaster University. She is also the Research Lead in Mental Health and 
Addictions at St. Joseph's Healthcare Hamilton and a Senior Scientist at 
Homewood Research Institute. She is an elected Fellow of the Canadian 
Psychological Association and is dually licensed as a clinical psychologist and 
neuropsychologist. Dr. McKinnon is well known for her work characterizing 
trauma-related illness and PTSD among military members, Veterans, first 
responders, and survivors of childhood abuse and trauma. She has also been 
involved in the development and testing of novel treatment interventions 
aimed at often unexplored aspects of PTSD and trauma, including guilt and 
shame, moral injury, dissociation and cognitive dysfunction. Dr. McKinnon 
serves as the Chair of the federally-funded PTSD Centre of Excellence's 
Research Reference group and works closely with government sectors 
including Veterans Affairs Canada and the Canadian Armed Forces. She has 
published over 120 peer-reviewed papers and chapters and currently holds 
funding from the Canadian Institutes of Health Research, the Canadian 
Institute for Military and Veteran Health Research, Defence Canada, 
Veterans Affairs Canada, the PTSD Centre of Excellence, and the Workers 
Safety Insurance Board of Ontario, along with numerous private foundations, 
including True Patriot Love, the Cowan Foundation, the Military Casualty 
Support Foundation and the FDC Foundation.



New Board Member – Julia Goyal

Ms. Julia Goyal is a graduate of McMaster University (B.Sc. 
(Honours), Biology) and University of Waterloo (M.Sc., Public 
Health and Health Systems). She is pursuing a Joint 
Interdisciplinary PhD between the School of Public Health and 
Health Systems (SPHHS) and Department of Mechatronics and 
Mechanical Engineering at the University of Waterloo (UW). 
She is a recipient of Joseph-Armand Bombardier Canada 
Graduate Scholarship. She is co-president of the UW SPHHS 
Graduate Student Association; Student Affiliate at the Global 
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